
A G E N D A 
REGULAR MEETING ON FEBRUARY 29, 2024 

3:00 P.M. AT OAKDALE, NEW YORK 
Zoom Informa�on - Please click the link below to join the webinar: 

 https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81193626540  
Or One tap mobile : 

16468769923,,81193626540# US (New York); 16469313860,,85981747840# US 
Or Telephone: 

Dial(for higher quality, dial a number based on your current location): 
+1 646 931 3860 US 

+1 646 876 9923 US (New York) 
Webinar ID: 811 9362 6540 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
PRESENTATION 
 
 Strategic Plan 2030 Update – Committee Chairs 
 
MINUTES FOR APPROVAL 
 

1. Regular Meeting – January 25, 2024 
 

CONTRACTS – EXTEND – ITEMS TO BE CONSIDERED ON CONSENT 
 Items 2a through 2n on agenda approved with one resolution on motion made by 
____, duly seconded by ____, and unanimously carried. 
 

2a. Contract 7792B – supply and maintenance of pumps and miscellaneous equipment 
(Zone B) during the one-year period beginning June 1, 2024 - extend with Eagle 
Control Corp. 

2b. Contract 7841 – installation and cleanout of overflow drain pits and other 
miscellaneous work during the one-year period beginning June 1, 2024 - extend with 
D.F. Stone Contracting, Ltd. 

2c. Contract 7855 – maintenance of heating, ventilation, and air conditioning equipment 
at various authority sites during the one-year period beginning July 1, 2024 - extend 
with Nice ‘N Cool, LLC. 

2d. Contract 7857B – maintenance of diesel engines- Zone 2 during the one-year period 
beginning August 1, 2024 - extend with PowerPro Service Company, Inc. 

2e.   Contract 7866 A & C – furnish and deliver stainless steel repair clamps, and stainless 
steel and bell joint leak clamps during the one-year period beginning July 1, 2024 - 
extend with Powerseal Pipeline Products and Smith Blair Inc. 

         2f. Contract 7929A – furnish and deliver gate valves and butterfly valves (line items 1, 2, 
3, 4, 5, and 9) during the one-year period beginning April 1, 2024 - extend with T. Mina 
Supply Inc. 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81193626540


         2g. Contract 7946 – installation of new water service lines and reconnection of service 
lines (tie-overs)- Group 1-West during the one-year period beginning June 1, 2024 - 
extend with Asplundh Construction Corp. 

         2h. Contract 7948B – furnish and deliver asphalt paving mixture for cold patching – option 
1 (item 2) during the one-year period beginning June 1, 2024 - extend with Black Gold 
Industries Inc. 

         2i. Contract 7952 – painting of fire hydrants during the one-year period beginning June 
1, 2024 - extend with Partners Industrial Services Inc. 

         2j. Contract 7953 A & B – installation of blowoff basins (Zone 1 and 2) during the one-
year period beginning June 1, 2024 - extend with Ed Cork and Sons (Zone 1) and 
Green Velvet Landscaping (Zone 2). 

         2k. Contract 7954 – furnish and deliver PH measuring equipment and pressure 
transmitters during the one-year period beginning July 1, 2024 - extend with Eagle 
Control Corp. 

         2l. Contract 7955 – removal and disposal of chlorinated wastewater from various sites 
(Zones A and B) during the one-year period beginning July 1, 2024 - extend with Island 
Pump & Tank Corp. 

         2m. Contract 7960 – installation of new water service lines and reconnection of service 
lines (tie-overs) – Group 2-East during the one-year period beginning June 1, 2024 - 
extend with Asplundh Construction Corp. 

         2n. Contract 7963 – repair of underground locating devices during the one-year period 
beginning July 1, 2024 - extend with Mohawk Ltd. 

 
CONTRACTS – AWARD/REJECT 
3a. Contract 7998 – seasonal contract for landscape and lawn maintenance at various SCWA 

sites during the eight-month period beginning April 1, 2024. 
3b. Contract 8016 – installation of water mains and services by directional drill technology- 

during the one-year period beginning May 1, 2024. 
3c. Contract 8017 – furnish and deliver stainless steel tapping sleeves, Items 7, 8, 11-18 and 

31 – 33 only during the one-year period beginning May 1, 2024. 
3d. Contract 8021 – demolish and replace roof at Production Control in Bay Shore during the 

one-year period beginning April 1, 2024. 
3e. Contract 8022 – furnish and deliver dewatering pumps and associated parts during the one-

year period beginning May 1, 2024. 
 

GENERAL  

4.    Equipment 

          4a. Ford F-150 Truck 
Accept the quote of Otis Ford, of Quogue, NY to furnish one (1) 2024 Ford F-150 
Truck at a price of $50,866.60.  

          4b. Mack MD6 CM Service Trucks 
Accept the quote of Gabrielli Truck Sales LTD, of Medford, NY to furnish seven (7) 
2025 Mack trucks built upon a Knapheide chassis at a price of $1,982,787.52. 

           



          4c. Refuse Removal and Recycling Contract 
Accept the quote of Winter Brothers Hauling, of West Babylon, NY for refuse 
removal and recycling services at an estimated annual price of $110,000. 

4d. Cryogenic Tank Removal and Replacement 
Accept the quote of Airweld Inc., of Patchogue, NY for the removal and 
replacement of a cryogenic tank used to store Argon gas at the price of $85,675. 

4e. Honeywell Controllers 
Accept the quote of Industrial Controls Distributors, of New York, NY to procure 
ten (10) Honeywell controllers at the price of $24,048. 

4f. Thermo Fisher Scientific Ion Chromatograph Service Agreement 
Accept the quote of Thermo Fisher Scientific, of Bohemia, NY to provide a 
maintenance and preventative service agreement for ion chromatograph machines 
to test for chloride and nitrates at the price of $20,578. 

    5.   Special Services 
 5a. RFP 1599 – Cash management services during the one-year period beginning July 

1, 2024 - extend with Three+One Company, Inc. 
 5b. RFP 1620 – Accept the proposal of EMA Inc., of St. Paul, MN for customer 

experience journey mapping during the one-year period beginning March 1, 2024 
at a price of $140,286. 

 5c. RFP 1621 – Accept the proposal of One Call Concepts Locating Services, Inc., of 
Holbrook, NY for screening, locating, and marking of underground facilities during 
the one-year period beginning May 1, 2024 at a price of $861,375. 

          5d. Success Factors – EIPUSE Change Order #6 
Authorize payment of change order #6 with EIPUSE America Inc. covering 
extension of the SAP Success Factors project to complete the implementation 
project by August 2024 in the amount of $459,178. This order includes 
development for previously out of scope items that must be included in the project, 
in addition to requirement changes identified during the integration testing phase 
in December. This order also provides a final integration testing phase and a 
complete payroll analysis and parallel testing phase. 

5e. RFP 1624 – Drug and Alcohol testing 
Accept proposal of Medtrac of New Haven, CT to provide drug and alcohol testing 
services including FMCSA National Clearinghouse monitoring for the 2-year period 
beginning April 1, 2024 in the estimated amount of $ 13,000. 

     6.  Meetings, Seminars, Training, Conferences 
          6a. AWWA ACE Conference 
 Authorize Deputy CEO for Administration Donna Mancuso, Director of General 

Services Jeffrey Kleinman, Water Quality Supervisor Andrew Clare, Lead 
Electrical Engineer Lucas Schultz, Capital Projects Coordinator Stephen Huber, 
Call Center Manager Gina Spaulding, and Attorney Alyson Bass to attend the 
AWWA 2024 Annual Conference in Anaheim, California from June 10, 2024 - 
June 14, 2024, for a total cost of $23,250. 

          6b. Esri User Conference 
 Authorize GIS Specialist Thomas Withers, GIS Technician II Caitlin Gormley, 

Engineering Technician Henry Gobrick and Junior Engineering Technician John 
Boudreau to attend the Esri User Conference in San Diego, California from July 
15, 2024 – July 19, 2024 for a total cost of $13,400. 



6d. NYS AWWA Spring Meeting 
 Authorize Deputy CEO of Operations Joseph Pokorny, Director of Strategic 

Initiatives Tyrand Fuller, Director of Production Control Michael O’Connell, Field 
Supervisor Catherine Nicoletti, Assistant Electrical Engineer Gabrielle Rumbolo-
Lindstrom, Associate Engineer Nicholas Barnowski, Meter Mechanic I Brad 
Majuk and Assistant Engineer Douglas Carpluk to attend the NYS AWWA Spring 
Meeting in Saratoga Springs, New York from April 9, 2024 – April 11, 2024 for a 
total cost of $9,200. 

          6e. LabWare Customer Education Conference 2024 
 Authorize Applications Developer Andrew Rogerson to attend the LabWare 

Customer Education Conference 2024 in Las Vegas, Nevada from April 14, 2024 
– April 19, 2024 for a total cost of $2,200. 

6f. American Backflow Prevention Association Conference 
 Authorize Cross Connection Control Manager Laura Wynhurst and Assistant 

Supervisor Eric Pomilio to attend the American Backflow Prevention Association 
International Conference and Tradeshow in Charlotte, North Carolina from April 
21, 2024 – April 24, 2024 for a total cost of $4,200. 

6g. AMWA Water Policy Conference 
 Authorize Chief Executive Officer Jeffrey Szabo and Director of Communications 

and External Affairs Daniel Dubois to attend the AMWA Water Policy Conference 
in Washington, D.C. from March 18, 2024 – March 21, 2024 for a total cost of 
$4,000. 

7.  Budget 
         7a. Budget Amendment #6 – F/Y/E May 31, 2024 

 Budget Increase Request Construction Maintenance 
Increase to item 031 (Construction Contracts – Tapping) in the amount of 
$400,000 
This change will increase the capital budget of $105.1 million to $105.5 million; 
costs will be recovered through capital reimbursement revenues.      

7b. Budget Amendment #7 – F/Y/E May 31, 2024 
Budget Increase Request Construction Maintenance 
Increase to item 010 (Replacement of Water Main) in the amount of $4,000,000 
This change will increase the capital budget of $105.1 million to $109.5 million. 
In August 2023, $4,000,000 was transferred from 015 (Distribution System 
Improvements) to 196 (Grant Projects) to permit the commencement of grant 
related capital projects. The work performed in 196 is now expected to be fully 
recovered through grant revenues as follows: 
IMG Grant ID 18878: $1,600,000 awarded Brookhaven ARPA Funding: 
$2,000,000 awarded EPA CDS Funding: $3,500,000 awarded.     

7c. Budget Amendment #8 – F/Y/E May 31, 2024 
Budget Transfer Request: Engineering 
Decrease to item 050 (Tank Maintenance and Construction) in the amount of 
$1,200,000 Increase to item 040 (New Wells) in the amount of $500,000 
Increase to item 047 (Replacement of Existing Wells) in the amount of $700,000 
This change will not impact the capital budget. 

 



7d. Budget Amendment #9- F/Y/E May 31, 2024 
Budget Transfer Request: Information Technology 
Decrease to item 095 (Transportation) in the amount of $589,000 
Increase to item 135 (Information Technology Technological Advancements) in 
the amount of $589,000 This change will not impact the capital budget. 

8.  Personnel 
          8a. Policy 115 – Paid Parental Leave - Revision 
 Remove the dollar amount and state that SCWA will pay up to 67% of the New 

York State Average Weekly Wage. 

INVOICES - To be paid from the Operating Fund: 
 9a.      Association of Metropolitan Water Agencies   $19,000.00 
9b.      Bond, Schoeneck & King, PLLC   $2,056.59 

          9c.      CorrTech, Inc.   $63,481.00 
 9d.      Dvirka & Bartilucci   $553.75 
          9e.      Heslin Rothengerg Farley & Mesti P.C.          $100.00 

9f.         Sobel Pevzner, LLC   $2,826.50 
 
NEXT MEETING – Scheduled for Thursday, March 28, 2024 at 3:00 p.m. at Oakdale.  
 
NEW BUSINESS & PUBLIC COMMENT 
 



DRAFT - Page 15492 
 

January 25, 2024 

Regular Board Meeting 
Suffolk County Water Authority 

January 25, 2024 at 3:00 p.m. 
4060 Sunrise Highway, Oakdale 

and Virtually via Zoom 
 
Attendance 
Present: 

Members: Charles Lefkowitz, Chairman 
Tim Bishop, Secretary 
Jacqueline Gordon, Member  
John M. Porchia, Member 
 

Excused Absence: Elizabeth Mercado, Member   
 
Jeffrey W. Szabo, Chief Executive Officer 
 
The meeting was attended by Counsels B. Malik and J. Milazzo; and was 
also attended by Messrs. Aponte, Blevins, Bova, Brady, Cecchetto, 
Derenze, Deubel, Dubois, Finello, Fuller, Galante, Given, Huber, Jacobson, 
Kleinman, Kilcommons, Lehning, Litka, Marafino, Marsden, McDowell, 
Niebling, O’Connell, Penza, Pokorny, Rae, Schneider, Seevers, Thompson, 
Turcios, Wahl and Warner; and Mmes. Berberich Cameron, Cantore, 
Hannan, Mancuso, Naccarto, Pell, Pfeuffer, Simson, Spaulding, and 
Tinsley. 
 
Barbara Yatauro of Local 393 was also present. 

 
  Chairman Lefkowitz called the meeting to order at 3:06 p.m. At 3:07 p.m, on a 

motion by Ms. Bishop, duly seconded by Mr. Bishop, and unanimously carried, it was 

(001-01-2024)  RESOLVED, That the Members go into executive session to discuss litigation 

and personnel matters 

On motion made by Mr. Bishop, duly seconded by Ms. Gordon, and carried with 
one opposed, it was 

(002-01-2024)  RESOLVED, To employ Alyson Bass to the position of Attorney at a salary of 
One Hundred Thirty Thousand Dollars ($130,000); to be effective upon successful completion 
of pre-employment physical and background check. 

 On motion made by Ms. Gordon, duly seconded by Mr. Bishop, and unanimously 
carried, it was; 

(003-01-2024)  RESOLVED, To employ Stuart Goodman to the position of GIS Technician at a 
salary of Sixty Thousand Dollars ($60,000); to be effective upon successful completion of pre-
employment physical and background check. 



DRAFT - Page 15493 
 

January 25, 2024 

 On motion made by Mr. Porchia, duly seconded by Ms. Gordon, and unanimously 
carried, it was; 

(004-01-2024)  RESOLVED, To employ Brian Bagozzi to the position of Single Resource Boss 
for the Central Pine Barrens Commission at an hourly rate of Thirty-one Dollars ($31.00); to be 
effective upon successful completion of pre-employment physical and background check. 

On motion made by Mr. Bishop, duly seconded by Ms. Gordon, and unanimously 
carried, it was; 

(005-01-2024)  RESOLVED, To employ Ronald Bagan to the position of Squad Boss Trainee for 
the Central Pine Barrens Commission at an hourly rate of Twenty-seven Dollars ($27.00); to be 
effective upon successful completion of pre-employment physical and background check. 

On motion made by Ms. Gordon, duly seconded by Mr. Bishop, and unanimously 
carried, it was; 

(006-01-2024)  RESOLVED, To employ Thomas Cox to the position of Field Operator at an 
hourly rate of Forty-three Dollars and Forty-one Cents ($43.41); to be effective upon successful 
completion of pre-employment physical and background check. 

On motion made by Ms. Gordon, duly seconded by Mr. Bishop, and unanimously 
carried, it was; 

(007-01-2024)  RESOLVED, To employ Shelby Kucera to the position of Talent Acquisition 
Coordinator at a salary of Sixty Thousand Dollars ($60,000); to be effective upon successful 
completion of pre-employment physical and background check. 

On motion made by Ms. Gordon, duly seconded by Mr. Porchia, and unanimously 
carried, it was; 

(008-01-2024)  RESOLVED, To employ Dominick DiCarlo to the position of Communications 
Assistant at a salary of Sixty-two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($62,500); to be effective 
upon successful completion of pre-employment physical and background check. 

On motion made by Ms. Gordon, duly seconded by Mr. Porchia, and unanimously 
carried, it was; 

(009-01-2024)  RESOLVED, To increase the salary of Frank Carbone, Chief Enforcement 
Officer by Three Percent (3%). 

On motion made by Ms. Gordon, duly seconded by Mr. Porchia, and unanimously 
carried, it was; 

(010-01-2024)  RESOLVED, To correct the salary rate noted in Resolution 518-12-2023 Alena 
Lawston to an hourly rate of Twenty-seven Dollars and Twenty Cents ($27.20). 

On motion made by Mr. Porchia, duly seconded by Mr. Bishop, and unanimously 
carried, it was; 

(010-01-2024)  RESOLVED, To change the title of Irene Ucci from GPS Analyst to Data Analyst 
in the Fleet Department. 

At 4:10 p.m Chairman Lefkowitz called the meeting back into public session. 

Mr. Given, Deputy Director of CM and Mr. Rae, Superintendent of CM gave a 

presentation to the board on main breaks. It was noted the increase during the winter months is 



DRAFT - Page 15494 
 

January 25, 2024 

due to colder temperatures and wetter conditions making it more likely for pipes to break. Ms. 

Gordon and Mr. Bishop inquired about the cost and frequency of replacing cast iron mains with 

newer mains. Mr. Porkony responded that about fifteeen miles of main is replaced every year, 

with cost being the largest barrier to doing more replacements. Chairman Lefkowitz was 

complimentary of the crews working in difficult conditions to replace the main and asked about 

coordination with other utilities in doing this work. Mr. Porkorny responded that we do 

coordinate with utilities and New York State to accomplish this work. 

Mr. Jacobson, Environmental, Health and Safety Maneger gave a presentation to 

the board on the Reduction of Incidents and Improvement Plan for 2024. He showed that 

incidents and injuries are down overall, and that there are plans to further increase safety in this 

new year. Ms. Gordon asked about how material vending machines work and if there is 

accountability and tracking use. Mr. Jacobson responded that employees must input their 

employee ID number and that we do track and make note of the data to analyze. 

 
(012-01-2024)  Mr. Lefkowitz presented the minutes of the regular board meeting of            

December 20, 2023, and on motion made by Mr. Bishop, duly seconded by Mr. Porchia the 
minutes of the regular board meeting on December 20, 2023 were unanimously approved. 

  Mr. Szabo presented the contracts to be considered for extensions. Items 2a 

through 2f were approved on consent with a resolution motioned by Mr. Porchia, duly seconded 

by Mr. Bishop, and unanimously carried.  

(013-01-2024)  RESOLVED, To extend for a one-year period beginning April 1, 2024, Contract 
7830A to furnish and deliver cold-water service meters Group I, III, IV and VII with Neptune 
Technology Group, Inc.  
  RESOLVED, To extend for a one-year period beginning April 1, 2024, Contract 
7830B to furnish and deliver cold-water service meters Group V and VI with Ferguson Enterprises.  

            RESOLVED, To extend for a one-year period beginning April 1, 2024, Contract 
7917 to furnish and deliver ductile iron pressure fittings, Groups XIII and XIV with T. Mina 
Supply Inc. 
                        RESOLVED, To extend for a one-year period beginning April 1, 2024, Contract 
7929B to furnish and deliver gate valves and butterfly valves (Line Items 6, 7, and 8) with Mueller 
Co. LLC. 

            RESOLVED, To extend for a one-year period beginning May 1, 2024, Contract 
7938 for excavating and backfilling construction holes with Quintal Contracting Corp. 

            RESOLVED, To extend for a one-year period beginning May 1, 2024, Contract 
7945 to furnish and deliver ultra low sulfur diesel fuel with Romeo Enterprises Inc. dba Romeo’s 
Fuel.        



DRAFT - Page 15495 
 

January 25, 2024 

  
  Mr. Szabo then referred to additional contracts and, recommended that they be 

awarded or rejected in accordance with the letters of recommendation.   

   On motion made by Mr. Porchia, duly seconded by Mr. Bishop, and unanimously 

carried, it was 

(014-01-2024)  RESOLVED, That due to an oversight the award of Contract 7998 to Del Graz 
Enterprises dba R&R Landscaping under Resolution No. 487-12-2023 be and hereby is rescinded 
and be it,  

FURTHER RESOLVED, That the bid under Contract 7998 for seasonal 
landscaping and lawn maintenance at Authority properties within the Towns of Brookhaven, East 
Hampton, and Islip, during the six-month period beginning April 1, 2024, submitted by BIB 
Services Corp. of North Bellmore, NY, on a unit price basis as stipulated in the bidder's proposal 
and calculated on estimated quantities indicated in the contract documents, at an estimated total 
cost of Eighteen Thousand Three Hundred and Seventy-five Dollars ($18,375), be and hereby is 
accepted; and that any Member and/or the Chief Executive Officer be and hereby is authorized to 
execute this contract on behalf of the Authority. 

  On motion made by Mr. Bishop, duly seconded by Mr. Porchia, and unanimously 

carried, it was 

(015-01-2024)  RESOLVED, That the bid under Contract 8012 for tree pruning and removals at 
various owned sites during the two-year period beginning April 1, 2024, submitted by Integrity 
Tree Care of Sayville, NY, on a unit price basis as stipulated in the bidder's proposal and calculated 
on estimated quantities indicated in the contract documents, at an estimated total cost of One 
Hundred Fifty Thousand Eight Hundred Dollars ($150,800), be and hereby is accepted; and that 
any Member and/or the Chief Executive Officer be and hereby is authorized to execute this 
contract on behalf of the Authority. 

 
          On motion made by Ms. Gordon, duly seconded by Mr. Porchia, and unanimously 

carried, it was 

(016-01-2024)  RESOLVED, That the bid under Contract 8018 for electrical work at various 
Authority-owned sites Zone A, during the one-year period beginning March 1, 2024, submitted by 
MMJ Electrical Inc., of Saint James, NY, on a unit price basis as stipulated in the bidder's proposal 
and calculated on estimated quantities indicated in the contract documents, at an estimated total 
cost of Eight Hundred Ninety-three Thousand One Hundred and Thirty-three Dollars and Ninety-
four Cents ($893,133.94), be and hereby is accepted; and be it 

            FURTHER RESOLVED, That the bid under Contract 8018 for electrical work at 
various Authority-owned sites Zone B, during the one-year period beginning March 1, 2024,  
submitted by L.E.B. Electrical LTD, of Amityville, NY, on the same basis, at an estimated total 
cost of One Million Three Hundred Sixty-three Thousand Five Hundred and Twenty Dollars and 
Forty-two Cents ($1,363,520.42), be and hereby is accepted; and that any Member and/or the Chief 
Executive Officer be and hereby is authorized to execute these contracts on behalf of the Authority. 

 



DRAFT - Page 15496 
 

January 25, 2024 

On motion made by Mr. Bishop, duly seconded by Mr. Porchia, and unanimously 

carried, it was 

(017-01-2024)  RESOLVED, That the bid under Contract 8019 for furnishing and delivering 
calcium hypochlorite tablets for automatic tablet chlorinators, during a one-year period beginning 
April 1, 2024 submitted by Eagle Control Corp., of Yaphank, NY, on a unit price basis as stipulated 
in the bidder's proposal and calculated on estimated quantities indicated in the contract documents, 
at an estimated total cost of Seventeen Thousand One Hundred and Thirty-six Dollars ($17,136), 
be and hereby is accepted; that any Member and/or the Chief Executive Officer be and hereby is 
authorized to execute this contract on behalf of the Authority. 

   Mr. Szabo then moved onto a discussion of equipment.  On motion made by Mr. 

Porchia, duly seconded by Ms. Gordon, and unanimously carried, it was 

(018-01-2024)  RESOLVED, To accept the quote of Hoffman Equipment, of Medford, NY to 
furnish three (3) LED light towers at a price of Forty-one Thousand Four Hundred and Twenty-
seven Dollars and Twelve Cents ($41,427.12). 

 
   On motion made by Ms. Gordon, duly seconded by Mr. Bishop, and unanimously 

carried, it was 

(019-01-2024) RESOLVED, To accept the quote of Agilent Technologies, of Santa Clara, CA and 
enter into an agreement for maintenance and preventative services of Inductively Coupled Plasma 
Mass Spectrophotometers (ICP MS) during a two-year period beginning January 16, 2024 at a 
price of Sixty-eight Thousand Eight Hundred and Thirty-two Dollars ($68,832); and that any 
Member and/or the Chief Executive Officer be and hereby is authorized to execute this agreement 
on behalf of the Authority.  

 
           On motion made by Mr. Bishop, duly seconded by Mr. Porchia, and unanimously 

carried, it was 

(020-01-2024) RESOLVED, To rescind the award to Modern Water, of London, UK for the 
purchase of a portable toxicity system under Resolution no. 333-07-2023, as vendor has been non-
responsive.  

 
 
  Mr. Szabo then began a discussion on special services. On motion made by                   

Ms. Gordon, duly seconded by Mr. Bishop, and unanimously carried, it was 

(021-01-2024) RESOLVED, To extend RFP 1596 with Victor Elefante Technical Services of 
Center Moriches, NY, to provide grade IIB water treatment operators courses on an as-needed 
basis during the one-year period beginning March 1, 2024. 
 
 



DRAFT - Page 15497 
 

January 25, 2024 

            Mr. Szabo then referenced staff requests regarding attending meetings, seminars, 

trainings, and conferences. On motion made by Mr. Bishop, duly seconded by Mr. Porchia, and 

unanimously carried, it was 

(022-01-2024) RESOLVED, To authorize Internal Audit Manager Alicia Simson and Internal 
Auditor Milton Turcios to attend the 2024 Great Audit Minds Conference in Las Vegas, Nevada 
from March 10, 2024- March 13, 2024, for a total cost of Six Thousand Four Hundred Dollars 
($6,400). 

 
              On motion made by Ms. Gordon, duly seconded by Mr. Bishop, and unanimously 
carried, it was 

(023-01-2024) RESOLVED, To authorize Deputy Director of Construction/Maintenance 
Christopher Given to attend the Global Excavation Safety Conference hosted by the Excavation 
Safety Alliance in New Orleans, Louisiana from March 19, 2024 – March 23, 2024 for a total cost 
of Two Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500). 
 

 
On motion made by Mr. Bishop, duly seconded by Mr. Porchia, and unanimously 

carried, it was 

(024-01-2024) RESOLVED, To authorize revisions to the budget for year ending May 31, 2024 
as follows: 

 Decrease to item 015 (Distribution System Improvements) in the amount of Two 
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000) 

 Increase to item 025 (Hydrants – Contractor Installed) in the amount of Two 
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($200,000) 

  This change will not impact the capital budget. 

Mr. Szabo then moved onto a discussion of budget matters. On motion made by Mr. 

Bishop, duly seconded by Mr. Porchia, and unanimously carried, it was 

(025-01-2024) RESOLVED, To authorize revisions to the budget for year ending May 31, 2024 
as follows: 

 Increase to item 035 (Developer Contracts) in the amount of One Million Five 
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($1,500,000); 

   This change will increase the capital budget of One Hundred Three Million Six 
Hundred Thousand Dollars ($103,600,000) to One Hundred Five Million One Hundred Thousand 
Dollars ($105,100,000); costs will be recovered through capital reimbursement revenues. 

 
           Mr. Szabo referenced a memo regarding rates, rules, and regulations. On motion 

made by Mr. Porchia, duly seconded by Ms. Gordon, and unanimously carried, it was 

(026-01-2024) RESOLVED, To ratify the partially executed installment agreement from Ridge 
Fire District – Account #3000000972, in the amount of $300,000 to settle a billing dispute. 



DRAFT - Page 15498 
 

January 25, 2024 

 
  The Members then reviewed the invoices for payment. On a motion made by     

Mr. Porchia, duly seconded by Ms. Gordon and unanimously carried, it was; 

(027-01-2024)  RESOLVED, To approve the following invoices be paid from the Operating 
Fund: 

Bond, Schoeneck & King, PLLC $7,445.50 
Heslin, Rothenberg, Farley and Mesiti $880.00 
Long Island Water Conference $5,000.00 
Morris, Duffy, Alonso, Faley and Pitcoff $4,695.00 
 

 
  The next meeting of the board members was scheduled for February 29, 2024 at 

3:00 p.m. As there was no further business to be considered, on motion made by Ms. Gordon 

and duly seconded by Mr. Bishop, the meeting was adjourned at 5:21 p.m. 

 

 

 
     _____________________________________ 
      Timothy Bishop 
      Secretary 
 















SUFFOLK COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
 

INTEROFFICE CORRESPONDENCE 
 

DATE:  February 22, 2024 
 
TO:  Chairman/Board Members 
 
FROM:  Jeff Szabo, Chief Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT:   Extension of Contract No. 7857B – Maintenance of Diesel Engines - Zone 2  

August 1, 2024 To June 30, 2025 
 

EXTEND: PowerPro Service Company, Inc., 1 Year 
              
 
PowerPro Service Company Inc., by way of the attached letter, has agreed to extend the subject contract for a third 
year, representing second of two possible one-year extensions.  
 
Original contract award, July 2022 to PowerPro was in the total estimated annual amount of $101,234. As of February 
7, 2024, PowerPro Service Company Inc. has been paid a total of $163,823 under their contract. 
 
PowerPro Service Company, Inc. currently holds no other Authority contracts. 
 
PowerPro’s performance on the above referenced contract is satisfactory.  
 
Production Control recommends granting the one-year contract extension to PowerPro Service Company, Inc. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Reviewed by: 
 
J. Pokorny, Deputy CEO Operations  _ 
M O’Connell, Director Production Control  _ 
 
Purchasing Clerk: D. Puma 
Purchasing Manager: J. Deubel 
 
Attachments:  1 memo 































LenaLiantonio
Oval



































































































































































SUFFOLK COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
Oakdale, Long Island, New York 

 
I N T E R O F F I C E   C O R R E S P O N D E N C E 

 
DATE:  February 20, 2024 

 
TO:  Jeffrey Szabo, Chief Executive Officer 
 
FROM: Michael Litka, Chief Technology Officer, Steven Galante, Director of Information Technology, 

Donna Mancuso, Deputy CEO for Administration, Christopher Cecchetto, Chief Financial Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Change Order Form for SAP SuccessFactors 
  
 
  
We are requesting approval of a change order agreement at a cost of $459,178 with EPI-USE America, Inc. to 
complete the SAP SuccessFactors implementation project by August 2024. This order includes development for 
previously out of scope items that must be included in the project, in addition to requirement changes identified 
during the integration testing phase in December. This order also provides a final integration testing phase and a 
complete payroll analysis and parallel testing phase. Attached is the change order for your review. 
 
This order will require a budget transfer to the Technological Advancement budget (135) to fund the project in 
fiscal year 2024 in the amount of $589,000. This transfer includes $219,000 is to fund the existing balance in the 
2024 budget. The remaining transfer of $370,000 is to fund the portion of this change order that will be paid in 
fiscal year 2024. The outstanding $89,000 will be funded in the 2025 budget. 
 
Existing budget requirement for previously approved change orders: $219,000 
Current budget requirement for new/unapproved change orders:  $370,000 
Total budget transfer request:      $589,000  
 
We would like to request that this request be presented to the Board Members for their approval at the next 
meeting on February 29, 2024.  
 
If you have any questions regarding the above, please do not hesitate to contact us. 



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 1 of 35 

Change Order No.: SCWA 006 V4 
 

Statement of Work Name and                  
Number 

Statement of 
Work Date 

Contractor 

Statement of Work: SCWA Employee 
Central, Employee Central Time and 
Employee Central Benefits 
Implementation 

 
June 3, 2021 

 
EPI-USE America Inc. 

Change Order Description 

This Change Order (CR6) is to add previous out of Scope developments to the already 
implemented scope items from SCWA005 V4 (CR5). In addition, CR6 allocates time to 
retest all or most of the test Scenarios, adds a final Payroll Compare and adds a Deploy 
Phase to take the functionally Live by July 2nd, 2024 . 

The Following items are included in this CR6: 

CCB Items 

▪ Additional requirements added after the CR5 Scope was tested and were 
approved via a CCB decision are included with this delivery. 

System Limitation Items 

▪ The Following items cannot be “configured” in the Software (SuccessFactors EC 
or ECP). To provide this functionality to SCWA custom developments for these 
items are needed. 

o Parental Leave, Disability Calculator and Workers Comp Calculations 
(These items required a custom solution in SAP and requires a similar 
development in Successfactors since the Leave System of Record moved 
to EC Time 

o COBRA functionality. Employee Central Benefits does not offer COBRA 
functionality. This must be custom developed or moved to a 3rd Party 
Administrator 

o ACA Functionality: Successfactors provided added functionality in 2023 
that allows integration to the SAP ACA Module. This integration must be 
developed and is not available out of the box. 

o Develop an interface or an automated upload between TCP and EC Time 

New Schedule Go-Live Schedule 



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 2 of 35 

▪ Provide sufficient time to configure, playback, and unit test additional scope 
items.  

▪ Provide time to complete the work with the goal of completing Mock 3, SIT 3 
and PP3. 

▪ Enable the Business users to test and review the entire system  functionality in a 
consolidated test phase. 

The new schedule is displayed in Appendix A – High Level Timeline. 

 

Additions to Plan  

▪ Additional enhancements/requirements that are documented in each functional 
section below. 

▪ Extended project timeline by 6 months and associated consultants to support 
this effort. 

▪ Extended Product leases. 

▪ Extended Project Management. 

▪ Additional Mock 3, Pay Parallel 3 and Systems Integration Testing 3 (SIT3) 

▪ Add Deploy and Hypercare phase 

Reductions to Plan  

▪ None 

 

All assumptions, terms, and conditions from the SOW will remain in place unless 
expressly changed by this Change Order. 

 IMPLEMENTATION SCOPE 

This change request will incorporate the entire scope of the implementation from the 
original SOW, all previous change orders plus including this change order. The goal is 
to make it clearer what the new scope includes. Scope items added as part of this 
Change Request will be highlighted in yellow and will reference to the associated 
Change Control Number (CC-xxx) that was approved by the CCB. The approved CCB 
list can be found in Appendix C.  

The table below provides the new scope for each component with the CCB approved 
enhancements plus enhancements that were identified in the Defect Log, and 



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 3 of 35 

enhancements incorporated during playback sessions. This Section replaces the scope 
sections from the SOW and subsequent CRs. The Scope highlighted in this section 
constitutes all items considered in scope. Items not mentioned here are not in scope 
even if they have not been explicitly excluded. 

 

1.1 EC 

• Employee Central (EC) Workbooks and Data Migration 

• Two (2) iterations of configuration 

• Enablement of Employee Central (EC) and Standard Reports Imported 

• Foundation Objects (e.g., Legal Entity, Division, Location, Department) 

• Compensation Elements (e.g., Pay Grade, Pay Scale) 

• Employee Profile - Employee and Manager Views 

• Position and Job Elements (e.g., Position Org Chart, Job Classification) 

• Employee Master Data Portlets 

• Biographical Data 

• National ID (SSN) 

• Address Info 

• Personal Info 

• Contact Details 

• Emergency Contact 

• Dependents 

• Job Information 

• Compensation Information 

• Email Info 

• Recurring and Non-Recurring Pay 

• Recurring and Non-Recurring Deductions 

• Payment Details (Bank Information) 

• Event and Event reasons  

• Employee Central Role Based Permissions – 7 standard, 3 custom 

1.1.1 Standard Delivered Roles: 

• Super Admin 

• Employee – On Others 

• Manager Self Service 

• HRBP 



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 4 of 35 

• HR Admin 

• Employee Self Service 

• SFAPI – Technical Role for Integration 

• Employee Central Event and Event Reasons 

• Custom Tables/Objects – up to 3 

• Business Rules to update/default data – Up to 50 
 

1.1.2 The implementation will include the following platform configuration, 
if required: 

• Configure service-wide settings such as password policy 

• Set up of home page quick tiles 

• Set up of Home page cards 

• Set up of Birthday/Anniversary Notification 

• Theme manager settings for Home page 

• Logo/Background pictures for Home page 

• Enable standard Employee Central dashboards and reports 

• Base product features such as user management and administration 

• Activation of US English language pack 

• Configuration of Employee Profile 

• Reports to display information from Employee Profile  

• Standard Employee Profile background information 

• Education  

• Honors/Awards 

• Volunteer involvement 

• Certifications 

• Courses 

• Work Experience within the company 

• Previous Employment 

• Language Skills 

• Professional Membership 

• Mashup Screens will be activated for information not stored in EC, e.g., 
Paystub, Taxes and Garnishments 

• Custom portlets configuration  

• Grievances NA (0102) (design change to accommodate data) 

• Disciplinary measure (0545) (design change to accommodate data) 

• Union bids 



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 5 of 35 

• Company property 

• SCWA Temporary Location Details 

• Probation period 2 & 3 notifications 

• Historical portlet design - Custom portlet for Historical information from On-
Prem  

• Job Info  

• Position  

• Comp info 

• Position management - custom fields and auto propagation to jobs 

• Notes - Custom fields with notes options can be provided depending on how 
many fields are required 

o Basic pay 
o Planned working time  
o Actions-Position Change 
o Organizational Assignment 
o Objects on Loan (company equipment) 

• Job Code - FLSA status; EEO4 category and linked to job 

• Employee title mapped to position title, display on the banner 

• Ability to see both hourly and annual salaries – Automated calculation based 
on the working hours for 37.5 and 40 

• Dependents covered under both spouses cannot have the same social security 
number 

• Progressions – Automatic progressions for pay scale objects using - Grade step 
progression 

• Employee Profile Portlets - modifications or changes - Additional modifications 
or changes to Courses, Job classification, Job Information, Employment Details 

• Employee profile background information - Courses & Certifications – field level 
and picklist changes. 

• Standard Delivered Workflows include: 
o Submitter > HR Admin > Manager 
o Submitter > Manager > HR Admin 
o Submitter > HRBP > Manager’s Manager 
o Submitter > HR Admin 
o Submitter > Manager 
o Submitter > Manager > Manager’s Manager 

• Comp Info - Add new fields to the portlet (Pay Scale Type/ Pay Scale Area/ Pay 
Scale Group/ Pay Scale Level); Auto propagation rules/ cross portlet 
information from job info to/from comp information 



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 6 of 35 

• EC Test Scripts – write 74 test scripts for EC testing 

• Company Code Pine Barrens 

• Employee status on employee profile 

• Auto update probation date and status for all new hires 

• Annual salary calculation 

• Copy address functionality on dependents portlet 

• EC reporting- 7 custom reports are generated 

• Employee profile photos 

• Employee Badges 

• Retiree and Surviving spouse 

• New employee ID series for Surviving spouse 

• Default mandatory job information details for surviving spouse 
 

1.1.3 The Following Items are out of Scope: 

• Contingent work force - Functionality to support employees who are retired 
and work part-time 

• Story Reports feature in EC 

• Additional email notification and alert customization templates for workflows 

• Work Eligibility (Work permits portlet enabled) 

• Activation of mobile for EC 
  



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 7 of 35 

Workzone  
(No changes) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Workzone Activation - This includes Basic functions and 
integration to EC Time and EC Benefits as agreed to during 
the Explore phase. 

• Includes Single Sign-on 
- Platform Setup 
- Migration of JAM to Work Zone for SuccessFactors 
- User Provisioning 
- IPS Setup 
- IAS Setup 
- Activation and Base Configuration  

• Integration Cards 
- Activities - A list of your prioritized Continuous 

Performance Management activities with their names, last 
update dates, and statuses. 

- Curricula Status - The overall status of the learning 
curricula assigned to you. 

- Development Goals - A list of your development goals with 
name, due date, and status. 

- Learning Approval - Learning requests that are pending 
your approval 

- Learning History - A list of the courses that you have 
completed in SAP SuccessFactors Learning 

- Learning Plan - A list of the courses that are assigned to 
you or you’ve signed up for in SAP SuccessFactors Learning. 

• My Profile - A basic overview of your job, organization, and 
company information, including job title, manager ID, HR 
contact, and cost center ID. 

• Org Chart - A list of your direct reports with basic 
information, such as job title and phone number. If you don’t 
have any direct report, your peers are displayed on the list. 

• Pay Statement - Navigation to your pay statement for the 
latest pay period. 

• Performance Goals - A list of your performance goals with 
name, due date, and status. 

• Spot Award - Your redeemable balance and a list of your 
received spot awards. 

• Success Factors Home Page - A card that embeds the SAP 
SuccessFactors home page. 



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 8 of 35 

Workzone 
(cont.) 

• Time Off - Your available time off balance and the nearest 
time off. 

• Vaccination Status - A report of employee vaccination status. 

• Guided Experiences 

• Return to Workplace (Admin)-As an administrator or HR, you 
can use this guided experience to plan a safe return to the 
workplace for your company employees. 

• Return to Workplace (Employee) - The employees selected 
to return to the workplace can use this guided experience to 
ensure their safety before their return. 

• Spot Award -Use this guided experience to give monetary or 
non-monetary awards to your colleagues based on a specific 
contribution or performance. 

• Microsoft Teams Integration 

• Single Sign-On Configuration (SSO) 

• Setup SAML SSO sign on to 1 identity provider e.g., Azure 
Active Directory 

  



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 9 of 35 

Employee 
Central Time 
(“EC Time”) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Detailed process and design workshops. 

• Configuration documentation in standardized SuccessFactors 
Workbook. 

• Configuration of EC Time Sheet and Time Off functionality to 
meet the functional requirements identified by the business. 

• Enable employees to enter their absence and attendance 
time via an online application.  

• Time approvers need to review and approve/ reject time off 
requests and time sheets. Workflows will be implemented to 
streamline this process. 

• Overtime will be generated on the time sheet and up to 
approximately fifty (50) unique overtime rules and 
approximately two hundred (200) overtime rules will be 
configured. Employees’ leave balances will be displayed 
through an online application. 

• EC Time will produce an error if an employee submits leave, 
and their request exceeds the available balance. 

• Leave accruals will be set up per company policy. 

• Time Accounts will be set up per company policy. 

• Leave of Absence Time types with event reasons will be set 
up per company policy. 

• EC Time will provide time entries to SAP for payroll 
processing via Integration. 

• Mobile functionality for Time Sheet and Time Off will be 
activated. 

• EC Time will be setup for the United States only.  

• EC Time will be available in English only. 

• One (1) Holiday Calendar will be provided. 

• Configuration of standard EC Time Sheet and Time Off to 
include: 

• up to eight (8) time profiles. 

• up to One hundred and fifteen (115) time types for 
attendances and absences. 

• accrual rules for each time account. 

• up to two hundred (200) work schedules. 

• up to ten (10) workflows for Time Sheet and Time Off 
approvals based on the business policy. 

• all standard reports for EC Time. 



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 10 of 35 

EC Time 
(cont.) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• enablement of standard mobile functionality. 

• Employee Self Service (ESS) functionality for employees to 
request leave, view balances, and track time. 

• Manager Self Service (MSS) functionality for managers to 
review time data for their teams; and 

• Role Based Permissions (RBP) updates for basic employee 
roles, manager roles, and HR roles. 

• Leave of absence time types with event reasons 

• Knowledge transfer to system analyst. 

• Rounding of clock time at the start and end of the shift 

• Reporting and Analytics (Canvas Reports): 

• Absence Overview 

• Time Account Overview 

• Absence Frequencies and Duration 

• Employee Time Overview 

• Time Account Snapshot 

• Employee Timesheet 

• All Time Accounts 

• Time Collector Template 

• Time Pay Type Overview 

• Time Account Payout 

• Advances Overview 

• Partial Disability Leave functionality 

• All relevant Time Types. 

• All relevant Validation Rules (count Waiting Period days 
before allowing Disability Period leave, etc.). 

• All relevant Time Account Types. 

• Functionality to create recurring Leave Requests for 
Disability Leave. 

• Standard Time Management reports. 
 
The following CCB Approved enhancements include their 
associated EC Time changes. 

• CC-014 Overtime Rules  

• CC-015 Holiday Calendars 

• CC-016 Time Profiles 



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 11 of 35 

EC Time 
(cont.) 

• CC-017 Time Types: Attendances and Absences: 80. Pay 
Time Types: 35 

• CC-018 Work Schedules 

• CC-019 Additional cost distribution field on time sheet 
(Pay Scale Level) 

• CC-020 Leave Balance to display on Payslips 

• CC-021 Comp Time Expiration 

• CC-030 Enhancement update impact 
 
Additional requested items included in scope: 

• XXX Accrual Posting on last day of the month 
• XXX Time Valuation defaults to Overtime Calculation 

(previously to Unclassified Leave) 
• XXX Accruals stop during Personal Leave of Absence  

The following items are out of scope: 

• Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) Calculations will not be 
handled in EC Time 

• Web Clock functionality – (TCP will be interfaced to ECC SAP 
on prem.) 

• Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) tracking* (see page 30 
for what is included for FMLA) 

• Advanced scheduling features 

  



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 12 of 35 

EC Benefits 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EPI-USE engagement for EC benefits will include: 

• Benefit Types requirements gathering workshop. 

• Benefit type configuration - Three (3) iterations to configure 
the benefits. Each Iteration needs to be signed off by 
(Company). 

• Unit testing. 

• One eligibility rule per benefit. The eligibility rule determines 
if an employee is eligible for a benefit. Eligibility details to be 
defined in the ECB workbook. 

• One contribution rule per benefit. This rule determines the 
employer and/or employee contribution percentage or 
amount. Contribution details to be defined in the ECB 
workbook. 

• One workflow per benefit (Approval Process). For example, 
create a workflow in case an employee claims or enrolls for a 
benefit, the HR/Benefits Admin must approve it. Workflows 
details to be defined in the ECB workbook. 

• One dependency rule per benefit (if applicable). 

• 2024 benefits enrolment load from current system as part of 
cutover/go-live process 

• Standard EC Benefits reports in the Advance Reporting tool. 

• Knowledge transfer to set up and run reports in 
Canvas/Advanced Reporting tools  

• Functional knowledge transfer to be able to set up benefits. 

• Client meetings. 

• Three benefit groups full time, retiree, and surviving spouse. 

• UI enhancements.  

• Life events will be automated – current manual process. 
 
The following items are out of scope:  

• The development of new functionality, extensions, or co-
innovation. 

• Reports that are not in the standard application or 
modifications to current standard reports. 

• Additional Languages And / Or Translations except those 
identified as in scope. 

• Email notifications. 

• New SAP release functionality. 



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 13 of 35 

EC Benefits 
(cont.) 

• Support for 2024 Benefits Open Enrollment Process (SCWA 
will be able to add 2024 Benefits support via an AMS 
agreement post go live.) 

  



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 14 of 35 

ECC Payroll 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Retain all current Payroll rules and calculations. Remediation 
to occur where Employee Central design (EC, EC Time, EC 
Benefits) requires it.  

• Remove / Disable SAP Time Evaluation to ensure this does 
not impact the SAP Payroll solution going forward.  

• Remove / Disable SAP Benefits Module to ensure this does 
not impact the SAP Payroll solution going forward.  

• Deliver One (1) standardized, PDF pay slip, that meets US 
legal compliance – and that can be made available online 
through Employee Central. This new PDF pay slip logic will 
retrieve sick, vacation, and personal leave balances and 
display them. 

• Testing and validation of Garnishment calculations (i.e., 
percentage or amount) 

• Testing and Validation of Tax calculations — for active tax 
authorities only (Active will mean any Authority necessary to 
produce accurate Tax reports at the end of the year. If a 
person is inactive at the time of go-live but needs a W2 at 
the end of the year due to compensation in the current tax 
year, the authority will need to be setup). 

• Testing and Validation of Retro-active calculations. No retro 
calculation prior to Go-Live date since no HR data can be 
updated in EC prior to go live. 

• Implementation of Payroll Control Center (“PCC”) delivered 
using the EPI-USE PCC Booster. This includes 100+ pre-
delivered validations and KPIs of which SCWA can select up 
to 70 to activate.  

• Testing and Validation of Off-cycle payroll processing for 
Once off (Bonus type) Payments and Correction Runs — Run 
via Payroll Control Center. Payment replacements, Reversals 
and Manual Checks to be processed using existing Off-Cycle 
Workbench practices. 

• Testing and Validation of the Payment process (ACH / Checks 
if applicable). No additional SAP printers will be setup as part 
of this project. 

• Testing and Validation of General Ledger postings to the 
current SAP FI system. 



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 15 of 35 

 

EC Payroll 
(cont.) 

• Quota balances will be imported and displayed on the 
payslips. 

• Pay Statement Eval Class: Create new wage types and update 
eval class to store quota balance for display on PDF pay 
statement. 

• Update PY feature HRFOR for display of PDF pay statement. 

• NUMKR Feature updates: Update this feature to 
accommodate replication of org. data. 

• Update table T510F_B-M1 to USD from USD3: Currency 
updates. 

• Creation action reason under action type 02 

• Refund WT configuration – Configure refund wage types. 

• New EE Subgroup – Create new EE subgroup for surviving 
spouse replication. 

• Default payment model – Configure default of payment 
model ZLTD for few benefits wage types that have monthly 
contributions replicated. 

• Pension plan calculation – Configure pension plans 
calculation in payroll rules and schema. 

 

The following items are out of scope: 

• Additional Custom Reports except if it is included in the 
Integration section of this document.  

• Redesign of any kind that is not directly linked to the 
Employee Central requirements and the integration 
requirements to the new EC system. Examples are, but not 
limited to:  

• Redesign on the Tax Models. 

• Wage type renumbering. 

• Adding the capability to run time transfers and Time 
Evaluation from within the Payroll Control Center. 

  



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 16 of 35 

Technical 
Scope 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Integration between EC and Payroll. 
1. Blocking of pre-FTSD termination replications 
2. Surviving spouse custom logic 
3. Termination custom logic 
4. Work Schedule Rule custom logic 
5. Pay Scale Group/Type/Area/Level custom mapping 
6. USD/USD3 currency custom logic 
7. Bank vs Check custom logic 
8. Cost Distribution and PINE Company Code custom logic 
9. Emergency Address Details custom logic 
10. Dependent Address Details custom logic 
11. User ID and EC User custom logic 

• Integration between EC Time and Payroll 
1. Timesheet export 
2. Absence export 
3. Time Account Snapshot 

• Integration between EC Benefits and Payroll 
1. Custom BenefitsIntegrationRecurringInfo - IT0014 
2. Custom BenefitsIntegrationOneTimeInfo - IT0015 

• Integration between Finance and EC (Cost centers) 

• Integration Center, SAP Cloud Platform Integration, Boomi, 
and/ or ABAP will be used to develop custom integrations. 
The Integration platform will be evaluated during the Explore 
phase before a final decision is made. There may be a blend 
of different technologies. 

• Refer to Appendix B for a list of all custom and standard 
integrations/ 

▪ Interfaces not listed in Appendix B, are out of scope, and 
will be handled via the Change Order process. 

• Single Sign-On authentication in the US will use SAP Cloud 
Platform Identity Authentication Service.  

• All employees will use the same method of authentication 
for access (i.e., there will be no mixture of SSO (Single Sign 
on) and standard authentication). 

• The following CCB Approved enhancements including their 
associated replication changes. 

- CC-001 Employee Groups 
- CC-005 Position management  



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 17 of 35 

Technical 
Scope (cont.) 

- CC-011 Upgrades in payrates 
- CC-019 Additional cost distribution field on time 

sheet (Pay Scale Level) 
- CC-020 Leave Balance to display on Payslips. 

The following items are out of scope: 

• Any Basis activities related to the SAP hosted Landscape. SCWA 
need to ensure there is sufficient basis support in case 
landscapes for Testing and Training need to be setup as per the 
project plan that will be developed during the prepare phase. 

  



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 18 of 35 

Data 
Migration 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

• Payroll direct uploads may need to be done for information 
not stored in EC (Garnishment and Tax information). 

• For Benefits, only the current year’s data will be converted 
to the EC Benefit Module 

• EPI-USE to extract data from existing SCWA HR systems. 

• SCWA is responsible for providing Foundation Object data as 
well as any data that is not directly available in SCWA HR 
systems. 

• SCWA and EPI-USE will review and validate the data mapping 
sheet used for conversion. 

• EPI-USE will utilize the standard Import templates from 
SuccessFactors and populate the data based on the data 
mapping sheet. Any Uploads to Payroll will utilize payroll 
upload templates supplied by EPI-USE. 

• Any missing data identified during the upload activity will be 
collected from SCWA for uploads. 

• Upon the data loads, EPI – USE will provide SCWA with the 
data extracts from the SuccessFactors system for review and 
validations. 

• Any corrections to the data upon validation will be corrected 
by SCWA in the source/ existing system. 

• Post correction SCWA to extract data from existing HR 
systems and provide the same in spreadsheets to EPI-USE for 
future uploads. 

• Data uploads planned activity will take place for IT1 (20-
25%), IT2 (75-90%), UAT and Go-Live. 

• EPI-USE will not be responsible to validate the correctness of 
the content provided in data files.  

• SCWA will be responsible for validating the contents of any 
extracts performed on incoming data. Any validation delays 
may result in additional migration effort.  

• When loading historical data, it is possible that there is no 
valid value for a field in EC that corresponds to the legacy 
data value from the current SAP system. In such cases, the 
field will be left blank in EC. 

• Historical data values converted for in scope portlets (Job 
Information, Position Information, Compensation 
Information, Union Bids, and Grievances/Disciplinary 



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 19 of 35 

Data 
Migration 
(cont.) 

Measures) will not be connected to any linked tables or link 
to other EC objects – these values will just be text 
representations of the historical data that are intended for 
the purpose of viewing this data. Historical data loads into 
EC are not intended to replace an auditable archive of legacy 
SAP data. 

• The following CCB Approved enhancements including their 
associated data migration changes. 

• CC-002 Custom portlets 

• CC-004 Load historical data EC 

• CC-005 Position management  

• CC-007 FLSA status/EEO4 category linked to job 

• CC-009 Ability to see both hourly and annual salaries 

• CC-031 Initial Load of Employee Photos 

• Enhancements around the handling of Surviving Spouses 

• User population Actives ~800; In-Actives ~800 

• Three mock cutovers will be performed. 
 

The following items are out of scope: 

a. Historical data conversion / update, except for the portlets that 
were specifically designed for historical data as part of this 
Change Order (Job Information, Position Information, 
Compensation Information, Union Bids, and 
Grievances/Disciplinary Measures) 

b. Year To Date payroll results (YTD) will not be converted since the 
Current SAP Payroll system will be the future Payroll system. 

c. Data Cleanup in legacy system. 

  



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 20 of 35 

Training and 
Change 
Management 

Standard Training will be provided by Service Provider: 

 

Knowledge Transfer to Administrators and HR users 

Standard Training Documentation and configuration workbooks. 
Standard, (non-customized) end user training materials, admin 
guides, including Job Aids, tutorials, classroom training guides, and 
other materials as available on the Success Academy Portal. Training 
materials are provided in English, in non-editable PDF format. 

Remote final configuration walk-through of the specific SCWA 
process configured and how to perform all the admin related 
functions. 

Working session demonstrating how to use SuccessFactors Canvas 
reporting to develop SCWA custom reports. In some cases, sample 
reports will be developed as part of the demonstrating.  

Knowledge transfer to technical system administrators 

Configuration workbooks, standard admin guides will be utilized. 

 
The following items are out of scope: 

• Formal Classroom training 

• SCWA customized training materials 

• Change Management activities. SCWA will be responsible to 
drive any change communication outside of the project team to 
the broader employee population. 

• All test scripts except for 74 EC Test scripts approved by the CCB 
and included in the EC Scope section above. 

 

  



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 21 of 35 

 CHANGE ORDER PRICING AND PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

 

• The contract value for services for this Change Order is $459,178. This consists 
of the following: 

• Time and Material estimate of $267,488 for extending the project for 
6 months. 

• Time and Material estimate of $66,690 for Requirement Changes 
from the Defect Log (see section 2.2 below).  

• Fixed fee of $125,000 for custom development (see section 2.1 
below) 

• There will be no additional charges for Query Manager and Variance Monitor 
because of extending the project schedule by 6 months. 

• There are no consulting fees charged for EC Time from October 2024 through 
January 2024. 

• Upon the execution of this Change Order, the Purchase Order for this SOW shall 
be revised  and sent to Contractor. 

• The PO will be set up with the applicable line number/items listed in the 
payment allocation     table above. It is imperative that the PO number and the 
applicable line number/item description appear on each Contractor invoice. 

• EPI-USE will provide onsite support for the first week of SIT3 to assure defects 



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 22 of 35 

are identified and remediated with minimal delays. These consulting fees are 
already included in  the Time and Material estimates. Additional Travel and 
Expense costs are included and estimated at $13,000 for 3 consultants (4 
days/consultant) and 1 consultant for 9 days. 

2.1 Change Order Pricing Estimates for Custom Development 

(Fixed Fee) 

Type Hours Cost 

Disability, Workers Comp and Parental Leave dashboard (Mendix) 500 $75,000 

ACA Integration  300 $50,000 

TOTAL  $125,000 

 
  



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 23 of 35 

2.2 Change Order Pricing Estimates for Requirement Changes 
from the Defect Log (T&M) 

 
 

2.2.1 TCP Integration with EC Time (T&M) 

Overview: 
 
SCWA is reconsidering the use of TCP as a clock vendor and exploring ways to make it 
work. Now that there is a better understanding of how EC Time works, there is a 
renewed attempt to bridge the issues that are hindering the use of TCP. 
 
Points discussed during the call: 
 

1. Format of the Import File: The TCP export file is not aligned with the EC import 
file, and this is a requirement for EC to receive the file. The export file from TCP 
needs to be changed. The actual import file template and field options were 
reviewed during the call. 



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 24 of 35 

2. Break Times: The TCP file does not log break times as separate time events 
(entries), and this is needed in the EC import file to create breaks in the Time 
Sheet. 

3. Frequency of Import: Yet to be decided. The EC import file requires both a 
punch-in and punch-out of an entry for the record to be imported – otherwise 
the import validation check will throw it out. This is problematic for frequency, as 
open records can’t be included. The solution to this will have to exist in TCP. As 
EC does not even receive the data – it can’t be manipulated inside EC. 

4. Missed Punches: The EC import file requires a punch-in and punch-out of an 
entry for the record to be imported – otherwise the import validation check will 
throw it out. This is problematic for missed punches, as open records can’t be 
included. The solution to this will have to exist in TCP. As EC does not even 
receive the data – it can’t be manipulated inside EC. If TCP can close the shift of 
the employee automatically after a certain number of hours, it may be a 
consideration to send a specific Time Type through the import file (e.g. Missed 
Punch). If the data is presented to EC this way, it can trigger an alert to the 
manager to review the “Missed Punch” time type and change it to normal 
attendance. 

5. Corrections: Any corrections will have to be done in EC, as the file import will not 
be able to remove or replace an attendance that’s already been replicated to EC. 

6. Disaster Recovery: The solution should cater for scenarios where the import file 
may be dropped (server down, etc.). This may include a warning/error and a 
recovery process. 

7. Integration Scenario: Clarity is needed on what the integration scenario would 
look like (SFTP, etc.). 

 
Next steps: As an immediate next step, SCWA will spend more time exploring TCP. 
 
This was not discussed in the call, but I thought of it afterwards: If a leave request exists 
in EC and attendance is created in TCP during the same time slot, it will create a 
collision. (This will be picked up in EC and will show as an error on the employee’s Time 
Sheet – but the attendance will not be created). 

Assumptions: 

• SuccessFactors will send employee data file in CSV format to the SFTP with user 
ID and Status fields for all users (more fields possible). TCP should fetch the file 
from the SFTP and update user data. 



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 25 of 35 

• TCP will send the time entries in the correct format (with all the correct 
requirements) in CSV format to the SFTP. SuccessFactors will fetch the file from 
the SFTP and import the data. 

Configuration items: 

1. Create Integration Centre job to import time data file into SuccessFactors 
(frequency TBD) 

2. Update UDF with custom fields as required and create HRIS sync 
3. Create Integration Centre job to export employee data file to SFTP (frequency 

TBD) 
4. Update UDF with custom fields as required. 
5. Create new Time Type to receive imported data 
6. Update all Time Profiles with new Time Types 
7. Update RBP’s 
8. Testing and UAT 
9. Workshops 
10. Knowledge Transfer 
11. Cut Over to all instances 
12. Update Documentation 

Out of Scope: 

1. No changes will be made to the time data file received from TCP via the SFTP. It 
should already be aligned to the import requirements and embedded 
functionalities in SuccessFactors. 

2. No additional error logs are provided outside the standard SuccessFactors logs, 
and embedded Time Tracking logs. 

  



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 26 of 35 

 ACCEPTANCE AND APPROVALS 

No support services associated with this SOW will commence until receipt of an 
authorized acceptance of this Change Request. Acceptance will be taken to confirm that 
all aspects of the Change Request together with pricing, terms and conditions are 
acceptable. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties has caused this Statement of Work to be duly 
executed and signed by its duly authorized representatives to be effective as of the 
Effective Date. 

 

For Suffolk County Water Authority 
 
 

(sign) 
 
 

(print name) 
 
 

(title) 
 
 

(date) 
 

For EPI-USE America, Inc. 
 
 

(sign) 
 
 

(print name) 
 
 

(title) 
 
 

(date) 
 

 



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 27 of 35 

APPENDIX A – HIGH LEVEL TIMELINE 

   



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 28 of 35 

APPENDIX B (INTEGRATION SCOPE ITEMS) 

 

Interface 
ID Interface Name Description 

In 
Scope 

New / 
Replace 
/Remove 

Business 
Area Source Target Notes 

INT-001 

Employee Data and 
Org Assignments 
Replication 

Employee master data 
and organizational 
assignments Yes New HR 

Employee 
Central SAP ECC   

INT-002 
Organizational 
Object Replication Organizational objects Yes New HR 

Employee 
Central SAP ECC   

INT-003 
Employee Time Data 
Replication Employee time off data Yes New HR 

Employee 
Central SAP ECC   

INT-004 
Cost Center 
Replication Cost centers Yes New HR SAP ECC/ FI 

Employee 
Central   

INT-005 
Benefits payment 
data Benefits payment data No N/A Benefits 

Employee 
Central SAP ECC 

Covered as pay components in employee 
replication 

INT-006 
Employee time 
entries Employee time entries Yes New Time 

Time Clock 
Plus 

Employee 
Central 

Existing ECC program - 
ZTCP_IMPORT_TIMECLOCK 

INT-007 
Employee Time Data 
Replication 

Employee time sheet 
(IT2010) Yes New Time 

Employee 
Central SAP ECC 

Replicate Time Sheet Data from SAP 
SuccessFactors Employee Central to SAP 
ERP. Maps EC Time Types to Wage Types 

INT-008a 

Arcos - 
employee/payroll 
data 

Automated call out 
system No     SAP ECC Arcos Keep on ECC 

INT-008b 
Arcos - time data, 
work schedules 

Automated call out 
system No Keep   SAP ECC Arcos Keep on ECC 

INT-009a 
Active Directory - 
outbound 

Employee master data - 
hires, changes, 
termination Yes New Operations 

Employee 
Central AD   

INT-009b 
Active Directory - 
inbound 

Business email, 
Username (AD account 
name) Yes New Operations AD 

Employee 
Central   



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 29 of 35 

Interface 
ID Interface Name Description 

In 
Scope 

New / 
Replace 
/Remove 

Business 
Area Source Target Notes 

INT-010 Davis Vision Vision No Keep Benefits ECC Davis 
Use existing program/process with 
replicated data 

INT-011 
Ameritas Life 
Insurance Company Dental No Keep Benefits ECC Ameritas 

Use existing program/process with 
replicated data 

INT-012 Ameriflex FSA No Keep Benefits ECC Ameriflex 
Use existing program/process with 
replicated data 

INT-013 Sun Life Financial Life insurance No Keep Benefits ECC Sun Life 

Use existing program/process with 

replicated data 

INT-014 Sun Life Financial AD&D No Keep Benefits ECC Sun Life 
Use existing program/process with 
replicated data 

INT-015 Sun Life Financial STD No Keep Benefits ECC Sun Life 
Use existing program/process with 
replicated data 

INT-016 Sun Life Financial LTD No Keep Benefits ECC Sun Life 
Use existing program/process with 
replicated data 

INT-017 Sun Life Financial Dependent Life No Keep Benefits ECC Sun Life 
Use existing program/process with 
replicated data 

INT-018 MetLaw Legal No Keep Benefits ECC MetLaw 
Use existing program/process with 
replicated data 

INT-019 Terryberry Service Awards No   Benefits       

INT-020 
NYSHIP/The Empire 
Plan Medical Insurance No   Benefits       

INT-021 
NYS Deferred 
Compensation Plan 457 plan - pretax No Keep Benefits ECC NYS 

Use existing program/process with 
replicated data 

INT-021 
NYS Deferred 
Compensation Plan 457 plan - post tax No Keep Benefits ECC NYS 

Use existing program/process with 
replicated data 

INT-021 
NY State Retirement 
- - TIAA/CREF Voluntary contribution No   Benefits       

INT-021 
NY State Retirement 
- Tiered (4-6) 

Mandatory contribution - 
% of salary (FT EEs) No   Benefits       

INT-022 Nationwide Pet Insurance No Keep Benefits Nationwide SAP ECC Manual process 



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 30 of 35 

Interface 
ID Interface Name Description 

In 
Scope 

New / 
Replace 
/Remove 

Business 
Area Source Target Notes 

INT-023 Aflac 
Cancer, hospital, and 
accident No   Benefits Aflac SAP ECC Manual process 

INT-024 
Worker's 
Compensation   Yes New Benefits     

Identified as out of scope and outside 
standard EC Time functionality. Suggested 
solution included a (one-way) replication of 
created WC claims from SAP HCM to EC. 
Data will be maintained in SAP HCM. Time 
Off Claims can be created in EC Time and 
will validate against provided logic. Data 
can be viewed in EC through custom UI, but 
not entered. The additional functionalities 
required in this list will require further 
investigation. A possible solution can be to 
use the current functionality in SAP HCM, 
while a report of the leave requested can 
be added from EC Time 

INT-025 
Employee 
demographic data Demographic data Yes New Time 

Employee 
Central 

Time Clock 
Plus 

Existing ECC program - 
ZTCP_EMPLOYEEPROFILES 

INT-026 Badging System Badge ID Yes New HR 

ID Badging 

System EC 

Updates IT0105 ST 9001. Maintain in EC 
and populate, may be able to populate in 
EE replication and avoid this explicit 

interface 

INT-027 Phone System Business cell phone No Keep HR   EC 
BP phone, email, and cell phone date for 
both BP and Address independent 

INT-028 GEO Decisions Event notification No Keep HR EC 
GEO 
Decisions   

INT-029 NY State 529 
College savings plan 
(deductions) No Keep Benefits SAP ECC NYS 529   

INT-030 
Employee time 
balances 

Employee time balances 
(IT2006) Yes New Time 

Employee 
Central SAP ECC   

INT-031 
Employee work 
schedules 

Employee work 
schedules No New Time 

Employee 
Central 

Time Clock 
Plus 

Existing ECC program - 
ZTCP_DAILYWORKSCHEDULE 

INT-032 
ACA Reporting 
interface 

Benefit plan and 
employee/dependent 
coverage No New Benefits 

Employee 
Central SAP ECC  

INT-034 COBRA Benefits  No New Benefits 
Employee 
Central SAP ECC  

 



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 31 of 35 

FMLA 
 
A request has been raised during the workshops to provide an on-system solution to the current FMLA 
application process. In the current process flow, the FMLA Application will precede the FMLA leave request 
in EC Time Off.  
 
FMLA Process: 
 
The required process will allow for: 

1. Employee applies for their FMLA claim through an FMLA Application Form (Section on Profile Page) 
in EC. The employee will provide the required information and attachments as required. 

2. The FMLA Application will be routed to the relevant authority (for example Payroll) who will be able 
to view the employee’s information. The result of the FMLA Application can be indicated and 
additional feedback can be noted by the relevant authority. Upon submission, this will update the 
section on the employee’s Profile Page. 

3. The employee can view the result on his/her Profile Page. 
4. Administrators (as required) can update the FMLA section directly without triggering an approval 

process, as required. 
5. The employee will use the Time Off functionality to request FMLA leave. The FMLA leave request 

will have additional validations built in to look at the employee’s FMLA Application status for the 
specific FMLA leave that is requested (Parent, Spouse, Child, Self or Self Paternity). 

 
Configuration: 
 
The FMLA Application will be configured in SuccessFactors through Custom Objects, Object Associations, 
User Interfaces, Profile Portlets, Workflows, Business Rules, Permission Roles, and Permission Groups. 
Additional validation Rules in Time Off will reference all the fields in the Custom MDF Object(s). 
Advance Reporting (Analytics) will be used for configuring the Canvas Report as specified.  
The effort (costing) includes the additional workshop(s), configuration, UAT, cut-over, workbook updates 



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 32 of 35 

and Knowledge Transfer session(s). 
 

Assumptions: 
 
This Change Order only provides for the application and approval of the employee’s FMLA claim, an action 
preceding the employee’s FMLA leave request.  

- One custom Canvas Report (Advanced Reporting) will be configured and delivered to allow for 
reporting on the FMLA Application data of all employees. This report will include filters based on org 
structures or other employee data as required. 

- It will not provide for FMLA tracking once the claim has been processed. (FMLA tracking is not a 
functionality of EC Time.)  

- Import of historic FMLA claim data is excluded. 
 
This Change Order is based on the feedback received during a call on 2 June 2022 where the proposed 
solution was explained, an (on-system) mock-up version was presented, the process flow reviewed, and 
examples of custom fields provided.  
All assumptions, terms and conditions from the SOW will remain in place unless expressly changed by this 
Change Order. 
 
  



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 33 of 35 

APPENDIX C – CCB LIST 

CCB # Title Description 
Business 
Area Work Stream CCB Status 

CC-001 Employee Groups Retiree and Surviving spouse Benefits EC Approved 

CC-002 Custom portlets 

Grievances NA (0102) (design change to accommodate 
data) 
Disciplinary measure (0545) (design change to 
accommodate data) HR EC Approved 

CC-003 
Probationary period 
notifications  Probation period 2 and Probation period HR EC Approved 

CC-004 Load historical data EC 

Custom portlet for Historical information from On-
Prem (Job Info + Position + Comp info + Union bids, 
Company property, Inactive) HR EC Approved 

CC-005 Position management  custom fields and auto propagation to jobs HR EC Approved 

CC-006 Notes 

this is used constantly by HR to document reasons for 
changes made in system. Custom fields with notes 
options can be provided depending on how many 
fields are required HR EC Approved 

CC-007 
FLSA status/EEO4 
category linked to job if not mapped will require manual entry by HR HR EC Approved 

CC-008 

Employee title 
mapped to position 
title 

Employee title has been mapped to job title – should 
be mapped to position title. Needs custom option – HR EC Approved 



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 34 of 35 

CCB # Title Description 
Business 
Area Work Stream CCB Status 

discussed with Prameela and Srini. In addition - might 
need to re-do data loads but will have to confirm. 

CC-009 

Ability to see both 
hourly and annual 
salaries 

In current system we can see both and the system 
does the math – have been told that a manual 
calculation will have to be done by HR in EC. This is 
custom development. HR EC Approved 

CC-010 

Dependents covered 
under both spouses 
cannot have the same 
social security number Will result in inaccurate information. HR EC Approved 

CC-011 Upgrades in payrates Upgrade pay level for a specific period of time. HR EC Time Approved 

CC-012 Progressions Implement Grade step progression module HR EC Approved 

CC-014 Overtime Rules  

Configure complex Overtime Calculations  
Original scope was 5.  
50+ (unique rules), 200+ (to be configured, impacted 
by 20+ Time Recording Profiles) 

Finance EC Time Approved 

CC-015 Holiday Calendars 
Original scope was 1. 
Current request 9 Finance EC Time Approved 

CC-016 Time Profiles 
Original scope was 5. 
Current request 8 Finance EC Time Approved 

CC-017 

Time Types: 
Attendances and 
Absences: 80. Pay 
Time Types: 35 

Original scope was 15. 
Current request 115 Finance EC Time Approved 



Change Order Form 

© 2023 EPI-USE America, Inc. All rights reserved.  Page 35 of 35 

CCB # Title Description 
Business 
Area Work Stream CCB Status 

CC-018 Work Schedules 
Original scope was 5. 
Current request 184 Finance EC Time Approved 

CC-019 

Additional cost 
distribution field on 
time sheet (Pay Scale 
Level) 

Current scope stipulates no additional cost distribution 
fields on time sheet. Additional field on time sheet for 
Pay Scale Level during Upgraded Overtime, with option 
for Manager to change. Integration to Infotype 2010. Finance EC Time Approved 

CC-020 
Leave Balance to 
display on Payslips 

Scope stipulates Employees’ leave balances will be 
displayed through an online application only. 
Leave Balances to display on Payslips. (Require 
additional configuration in EC Time and Payroll, also 
testing and KT) HR EC Time Approved 

CC-021 Comp Time Expiration 

Outside of standard EC functionality, additional config 
required. 
Comp Time (In lieu of) to expire within one or two 
weeks after accrued. HR EC Time Approved 

CC-024 

Employee Profile 
Portlets - 
modifications or 
changes 

Additional modifications or changes to Courses, Job 
classification, Job Information, Employment Details HR EC Approved 

CC-027 Comp Info 

Add new fields to the portlet (Pay Scale Type/ Pay Scale 
Area/ Pay Scale Group/ Pay Scale Level); Auto 
propagation rules/ cross portlet information from job 
info to/from comp information HR EC Approved 

CC-029 Test Scripts Write 74 test scripts for EC testing HR EC Approved 

CC-030 
Enhancement update 
impact 

2022 H2 enhancements required security changes to 
existing configuration. HR EC Time Approved 

 











SUFFOLK COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
Oakdale, Long Island, New York 

 
I N T E R O F F I C E   C O R R E S P O N D E N C E 

 
DATE: February 21, 2024 
 
TO:  Jeffrey Szabo, CEO 
 
FROM: Donna Mancuso, Deputy CEO for Administration and Joseph M. Pokorny 

P.E., Deputy CEO Operations 
 
SUBJECT: AWWA 2024 Annual Conference in Anaheim, California  
 

The AWWA Annual Conference for 2024 will be held from June 10 through 13, 2023, in 
Anaheim, California. As a Trustee for the Management & Leadership Division and liaison to 
the Workforce Strategies Committee, Donna is required to attend the in-person committee 
meetings planned during the conference. This is her last conference as a Trustee. Sessions for 
the management and leadership track include strategic planning, water affordability, 
cybersecurity, artificial intelligence, utility management and optimization, and workforce 
recruitment, development and culture. As with previous conferences, she will moderate at least 
one (1) session during the conference. 
 
The cost for full attendance including registration, airfare, hotel and meals is estimated to be 
$2,800 for Donna. In order to take advantage of reduced registration fees and secure a hotel 
room near the conference, she would like to register as soon as possible. Director of General 
Services Jeffrey Kleinman, Attorney Alyson Bass and Call Center Manager Gina Spaulding 
will also be attending at a total cost of $3,500 per person. 
 
Joseph is requesting approval to send Andrew Clare, Water Quality Supervisor in Production 
Control along with Lucas Schultz, Lead Electrical Engineer in Engineering and Stephen Huber, 
Capital Projects Coordinator in Construction and Maintenance to the AWWA Annual 
Conference and Exhibition in Anaheim, California June 10-14, 2024.   

This is AWWA’s annual, national event and the conference has a lot to offer operations 
employees due to breadth of the technical programs and the size and scope of the vendor exhibits 
showcasing industry products and services. Previous attendees always come back with new ideas 
about ways to improve our operation.  Because of its sheer size, this conference presents an 
excellent opportunity to interact with water professionals from across the country.  For those 
with NYS water treatment plant operator licenses it is also another opportunity to obtain 
continuing education units towards maintaining that license. 

The total cost of attendance for the 5 days is approximately $3,300 per person which includes air 
transportation, four nights hotel, meals and registration (the registration cost is $950). A portion 
of the brochure is attached with information regarding the topics covered at this conference.  If 
this meets with your approval, please place this on the agenda for the February Board meeting. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 











SUFFOLK COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
Laboratory 

 
I N T E R O F F I C E   C O R R E S P O N D E N C E 

 
DATE:   February 6, 2024 
 
TO:   Jeffrey Szabo, CEO 
   
FROM:  Thomas Schneider, Director of Water Quality & Lab Services  
 
SUBJECT: Board Approval for to attend the LabWare Customer Education Conference 2024 
 
I would like Andrew Rogerson, Applications Developer, to attend the LabWare Customer Education 
conference, being held in Las Vegas, Nevada, April 14-19, 2024. The conference will allow Andrew to 
attend several professional sessions directly applicable to his work. Andrew will be able to network 
with a variety of IT industry experts and colleagues from around the country. He will have the 
opportunity to take training classes and participate in technical sessions relevant to the configuration 
of LabWare LIMS at the SCWA. The presentations are tailored to the IT professional providing 
information on new business needs for the water industry. 
 
After reviewing the Symposium Program, Andrew has identified several sessions which will allow him 
to gain knowledge and understanding about how we can efficiently utilize the tools LabWare offers. 
The presentations are all facilitated by industry experts who have faced similar challenges. This is a 
valuable opportunity to advance his skills, improve efficiency, and transfer knowledge back to the 
Laboratory staff. 
 
If you concur, I would like to obtain the Board’s approval for Andrew Rogers to attend the LabWare 
Customer Education Conference 2024 at a cost of $2200. 















































SUFFOLK COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
Laboratory 

 
I N T E R O F F I C E   C O R R E S P O N D E N C E 

 
DATE:   February 22, 2024 
 
TO:   Charles Lefkowitz, Chairman 
   
FROM:  Jeffrey Szabo, CEO  
 
SUBJECT: Board Approval for to attend the AMWA Water Policy Conference 
 
AMWA’s 2024 Water Policy Conference is a must-attend policy gathering for water utility 
executives. It provides an opportunity for participants to engage with senators, representatives, 
top officials in the Biden Administration, and peers to hear about insights that will shape utility 
operations and management for the year. I request your approval for myself and Director of 
Communications and External Affairs, Daniel Dubois, to attend the conference at a cost of 
$4,000. 
 



SUFFOLK COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
Oakdale, Long Island, New York 

 
I N T E R O F F I C E   C O R R E S P O N D E N C E 

 
DATE:  February 20, 2024 

 
TO:  Jeff Szabo, Chief Executive Officer 
 
FROM:  Christopher Cecchetto, Chief Financial Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Budget Amendment #6 – F/Y/E May 31, 2024 
  
 
  
In accordance with the attached memo from Brendan Warner, approved by Joe Pokorny, we are requesting the 
following fiscal year 2024 budget amendment: 
 
 
 
Budget Increase Request Construction Maintenance 
 
Increase to item 031 (Construction Contracts – Tapping) in the amount of $400,000 
 
This change will increase the capital budget of $105.1 million to $105.5 million; costs will be recovered through 
capital reimbursement revenues. 
 
Please include this on the Board Agenda for members' consideration, at their next meeting of February 29, 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CC:ms 
attachment 
 
c: B. Warner, J. Pokorny, L. Preller, S. Hannan 
 
FIN-24-017 



SUFFOLK COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
Construction Maintenance - Oakdale, New York 

 
INTER-OFFICE CORRESPONDENCE  

 
DATE:  February 16, 2024 
 
TO:  Joe Pokorny P. E., Deputy CEO for Operations 
 

FROM: Brendan J. Warner, P.E. , Director, Construction-Maintenance  
 
SUBJECT: Budget Increase for 031 – Construction Contract Tapping  
 
 
An increase in the budget is necessary for Budget Line 031 – Construction Contracts Tapping. This Budget 
Line covers new services for which the Authority is reimbursed actual cost.  Currently there is only 
approximately $21,000 remaining in this line item. There are several projects that cannot be executed due 
to insufficient funds. They are as follows: 

SUNY Stony Brook at Nichols Rd, Stony Brook $62,630.00 
612 Union Ave, Holtsville $32,179.00 
612 Union Ave, Holtsville $73,343.00 
1948 Deer Park Ave, Deer Park $73,343.00 
3289 Veterans Memorial Highway, Ronkonkoma $53,095.00 

Total $221,247.00 
 

An additional $221,247 will be needed to fund the above list of projects.  Based on this I am requesting an 
increase of $400,000 to Budget Line 031 – Construction Contracts in order to fund the above listed projects 
and to have some available monies for the remainder of the fiscal year for future projects.  Any future 
increases for these budget line items will be determined on an as needed basis as the projects arise; and 
will be presented to the Board for approval.  Any 031 expenditures are offset by the revenues received from 
the execution of the construction contracts and all payments are received in full before any work is started. 
 
Approved by: 
 
___________________    ______________ 
Joseph M. Pokorny, P.E.    Date 
Deputy CEO for Operations 
 
Cc:  Stephen Huber   
 Chris Cecchetto 

2/20/24



SUFFOLK COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
Oakdale, Long Island, New York 

 
I N T E R O F F I C E   C O R R E S P O N D E N C E 

 
DATE:  February 20, 2024 

 
TO:  Jeff Szabo, Chief Executive Officer 
 
FROM:  Christopher Cecchetto, Chief Financial Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Budget Amendment #7 – F/Y/E May 31, 2024 
  
 
  
In accordance with the attached memo from Brendan Warner, approved by Joe Pokorny, we are requesting the 
following fiscal year 2024 budget amendment: 
 
 
 
Budget Increase Request Construction Maintenance 
 
Increase to item 010 (Replacement of Water Main) in the amount of $4,000,000 
 
This change will increase the capital budget of $105.1 million to $109.5 million. 
 
In August 2023, $4,000,000 was transferred from 015 (Distribution System Improvements) to 196 (Grant Projects) 
to permit the commencement of grant related capital projects. The work performed in 196 is now expected to be 
fully recovered through grant revenues as follows: 
 

IMG Grant ID 18878: $1,600,000 awarded 
Brookhaven ARPA Funding: $2,000,000 awarded 
EPA CDS Funding: $3,500,000 awarded 

 
Although this will appear as an increase to the capital budget, SCWA revenues utilized for capital projects will 
now reflect initial approved amounts by the Board when budgets were adopted in March 2023; the budget 
increase is effectively attributable to 196 (Grant Projects). 
 
Please include this on the Board Agenda for members' consideration, at their next meeting of February 29, 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CC:ms 
attachment 
 
c: B. Warner, J. Pokorny, L. Preller, S. Hannan 
 
FIN-24-018 



SUFFOLK COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
Construction Maintenance - Oakdale, New York 

 
INTER-OFFICE CORRESPONDENCE  

 
DATE:  February 20, 2024 
 
TO:  Joe Pokorny P. E., Deputy CEO for Operations 

FROM:  Brendan J. Warner, P.E. , Director, Construction-Maintenance  
 
SUBJECT: Budget Increase to 010 
 

I am requesting an increase to CM’s water main replacements budget line item to replenish capital 
funds that were utilized for a grant funded water main extension. In August of 2023, $4,000,000 was 
transferred from budget line 015 – Distribution System Improvement to 196 – Grant Projects in order to 
provide budget to Authorize the Halsey Manor Water Main Extension Project.  This 20,000 foot Water Main 
project is being fully funded through multiple grants provided by the Federal, State and Town sources.  As 
the transfer was occurring early in the fiscal year, it was unclear if the Department would be able to complete 
its planned capital projects or if this significant project would be completed in-lieu of other projects.   

The last six months has demonstrated that the planned capital projects have not slowed, due in part 
to the fact that the Halsey Manor contract was awarded to a third contractor who does not currently hold our 
Annual Pipeline Contract.  For reference, I have attached a chart showing our installation of water main over 
the last year, highlighting the fact that the Halsey Manor project has been additive to our water main 
installation. Based on this, I am requesting to replenish the capital funds that were transferred to the Grant 
Projects budget line.  This will be an overall increase to the Capital Budget, however all project costs 
associated with the Halsey Manor project are being reimbursed through grants.  The requested transfer is 
outlined below. 
 
Increase to: Budget Line item 010 – Water Main Replacements - $4,000,000. 
 
If you are in agreement with this transfer please present to the Board at their February meeting. 
 
 
Approved by:  __________________    ______________ 

Joseph M. Pokorny, P.E.    Date 
Deputy CEO for Operations 

 
 

 
Cc:  Stephen Huber 
 Chris Cecchetto 
  



0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

January February March April May June July August September October November December

Miles of Main Installed YTD

2020 2021 2022 2023



SUFFOLK COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
Oakdale, Long Island, New York 

 
I N T E R O F F I C E   C O R R E S P O N D E N C E 

 
DATE:  February 21, 2024 

 
TO:  Jeff Szabo, Chief Executive Officer 
 
FROM:  Christopher Cecchetto, Chief Financial Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Budget Amendment #8 – F/Y/E May 31, 2024 
  
 
  
In accordance with the attached memo from Tim Kilcommons, approved by Joe Pokorny, we are requesting the 
following fiscal year 2024 budget amendment: 
 
 
 
Budget Transfer Request: Engineering 
 
Decrease to item 050 (Tank Maintenance and Construction) in the amount of $1,200,000 
 
Increase to item 040 (New Wells) in the amount of $500,000 
 
Increase to item 047 (Replacement of Existing Wells) in the amount of $700,000 
 
This change will not impact the capital budget. 
 
 
Please include this on the Board Agenda for members' consideration, at their next meeting of February 29, 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CC:ms 
attachment 
 
c: T. Kilcommons, J. Pokorny, L. Preller, S. Hannan 
 
FIN-24-019 



2/21/24



SUFFOLK COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
Oakdale, Long Island, New York 

 
I N T E R O F F I C E   C O R R E S P O N D E N C E 

 
DATE:  February 27, 2024 

 
TO:  Jeff Szabo, Chief Executive Officer 
 
FROM:  Christopher Cecchetto, Chief Financial Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Budget Amendment #9 – F/Y/E May 31, 2024 
  
 
  
In accordance with the attached memo from Michael Litka, Steven Galante, Donna Mancuso, and Chris 
Cecchetto, we are requesting the following fiscal year 2024 budget amendment: 
 
 
 
Budget Transfer Request: Information Technology 
 
Decrease to item 095 (Transportation) in the amount of $589,000 
 
Increase to item 135 (Information Technology Technological Advancements) in the amount of $589,000 
 
This change will not impact the capital budget. 
 
 
Please include this on the Board Agenda for members' consideration, at their next meeting of February 29, 2024. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CC:ms 
attachment 
 
c: M. Litka, D. Mancuso, S. Galante, L. Preller 
 
FIN-24-020 



SUFFOLK COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 
Oakdale, Long Island, New York 

 
I N T E R O F F I C E   C O R R E S P O N D E N C E 

 
DATE:  February 20, 2024 

 
TO:  Jeffrey Szabo, Chief Executive Officer 
 
FROM: Michael Litka, Chief Technology Officer, Steven Galante, Director of Information Technology, 

Donna Mancuso, Deputy CEO for Administration, Christopher Cecchetto, Chief Financial Officer 
 
SUBJECT: Change Order Form for SAP SuccessFactors 
  
 

  

We are requesting approval of a change order agreement at a cost of $459,178 with EPI-USE America, Inc. to 
complete the SAP SuccessFactors implementation project by August 2024. This order includes development for 
previously out of scope items that must be included in the project, in addition to requirement changes identified 
during the integration testing phase in December. This order also provides a final integration testing phase and a 
complete payroll analysis and parallel testing phase. Attached is the change order for your review. 
 
This order will require a budget transfer to the Technological Advancement budget (135) to fund the project in 
fiscal year 2024 in the amount of $589,000. This transfer includes $219,000 is to fund the existing balance in the 
2024 budget. The remaining transfer of $370,000 is to fund the portion of this change order that will be paid in 
fiscal year 2024. The outstanding $89,000 will be funded in the 2025 budget. 
 
Existing budget requirement for previously approved change orders: $219,000 
Current budget requirement for new/unapproved change orders:  $370,000 
Total budget transfer request:      $589,000  
 
We would like to request that this request be presented to the Board Members for their approval at the next 
meeting on February 29, 2024.  
 
If you have any questions regarding the above, please do not hesitate to contact us. 



SUFFOLK COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY    
       INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 
DATE: February 20, 2024 
 
TO:  Jeff Szabo, Chief Executive Officer 
 
FROM: Donna Mancuso, Deputy CEO for Administration 
 
SUBJECT: POLICY 115 – PAID PARENTAL LEAVE – REVISION  
 
As previously discussed, the New York State Average Weekly Wage increases annually in January. 
In SCWA’s Policy 115, we have placed a dollar amount ($1,131.08) which equated to 67% of the 
NYSAWW in 2023 (similar to Paid Family Leave). In order to avoid yearly updates, I am 
recommending that we remove the dollar amount and state that SCWA will pay up to 67% of the 
NYSAWW.  
If you agree, please place on the agenda for the February 29, 2024 board meeting.  Thank you.  
 
 
 



SUFFOLK COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY 

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

 
SUBJECT: PAID PARENTAL LEAVE FILE UNDER SECTION NO.:  1 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  March 1, 2024    POLICY NO. 115 

 
SUPERSEDES: June 1, 2023   APPROVED:  

 
Suffolk County Water Authority (SCWA) will provide up to 8 weeks of paid parental leave to 
employees following the birth of an employee’s child or the placement of a child with an employee 
in connection with adoption or foster care. The purpose of paid parental leave is to enable the 
employee to care for and bond with a newborn or newly adopted or newly placed child. This 
policy will run concurrently with Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) leave, as 
applicable.  
 
For management (non-bargaining unit) employees, this policy will be in effect for births, 
adoptions or placement of foster children occurring on or after January 26, 2023. 
 
For union (bargaining unit) employees, this policy will be in effect for births, adoptions or 
placement of foster children occurring on or after June 1, 2023.  
 
Eligibility 
The employee must be eligible for Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) leave. 

• An employee must meet FMLA eligibility requirements, including: 
• Employment with SCWA for at least 12 months. 
• Have worked at least 1,250 hours during the 12 consecutive months immediately 

preceding the date the leave would begin. 
• Full-time or part-time (more than 20 hours per week and 175 days per year) regular 

employees (temporary employees and interns are not eligible). 
 
In addition, the employee must meet one of the following criteria: 

• Have given birth to a child; 
• Be a spouse or committed partner of a woman who has given birth to a child; 
• Have adopted a child or been placed with a foster child (child must be age 17 or younger). 

The adoption of a spouse’s child is excluded from this policy. 
 
Leave Entitlement and Usage 

Eligible employees will: 

• Receive a maximum of 8 weeks of paid parental leave per birth, adoption or placement 
of a child/children. The fact that a multiple birth, adoption or placement occurs (e.g. birth 
of twins or adoption of siblings) does not increase the 8 week total amount of paid parental 
leave granted for that event. In addition, an employee will not receive more than 8 weeks 
of paid parental leave in a rolling 12-month period, regardless of whether more than one 
birth, adoption or foster care placement event occurs within that 12-month time frame.  

  



• The first two (2) weeks of paid parental leave will be compensated at 100% of the 
employee’s regular, straight-time week pay. If the employee is also paid under NYS 
Disability due to the birth of a child, the employee will be paid the first week of leave at 
100% and once NYS Disability payments begin, will receive the difference between the 
disability payment and 100% of salary for the 2nd week.  Paid parental leave will be paid 
on a weekly basis on the regularly scheduled pay date.  

• Weeks three (3) through eight (8) of paid parental leave is compensated at 67% of the 
employee’s regular, straight-time weekly pay up to a maximum 67% of NYSAWW. If the 
employee is also paid under NYS Disability due to the birth of a child, the employee will 
be paid the difference between the disability payment and 67% of salary for weeks three 
(3) through eight (8).   

• Employees may choose to use their accrued sick, personal or vacation time to 
supplement weeks three (3) through eight (8).  

• Paid parental leave may be used continuously during the 8 weeks immediately following 
the birth or placement. Paid parental leave may not be taken intermittently. There are no 
carryover provisions for unused paid parental leave. An employee may not be paid for 
unused or expired paid parental leave. 

• Paid parental leave must be taken in full workdays (7.5- or 8-hour days). 

• Use of paid parental leave is reserved for periods when an employee is acting in a 
parental role and engaged in activities directly related to the care of the child whose birth 
or placement triggered the leave entitlement. Using paid parental leave for these 
purposes supports the objective of increased parent-child bonding.  

• Employees are not required to use sick, vacation, or personal accrued time prior to 
requesting paid parental leave.  

• At SCWA’s request an employee must provide appropriate documentation showing that 
the employee’s use of paid parental leave is directly connected to a birth or placement 
that has occurred.  

Coordination with Other Policies 

Paid parental leave taken under this policy will run concurrently with leave under FMLA; thus, 
any leave taken under this policy that falls under the definition of circumstances qualifying for 
leave due to the birth or placement of a child due to adoption or foster care, the leave will be 
counted toward the 12 weeks of available FMLA leave per a 12-month period. All other 
requirements and provisions under FMLA will apply. In no case will the total amount of leave – 
paid or unpaid – granted to the employee under FMLA exceed 12 weeks during the 12-month 
FMLA period.  Refer to Policy 107 for further guidance on FMLA. 

After paid parental leave (and any short-term disability leave for employees giving birth) is 
exhausted, the balance of FMLA leave may be compensated (employee’s choice) through 
employee’s accrued sick, vacation and personal time. Upon exhaustion of accrued time, any 
remaining leave will be unpaid leave. Refer to Policy 107 for further guidance on FMLA. 

SCWA will maintain all benefits for employees during the paid parental leave period.  

If an SCWA holiday occurs while the employee is on paid parental leave, such day will be 
charged to holiday pay; however, such holiday pay will not extend the total paid parental leave 
entitlement. 



 
Notice of Leave: 
Employees must give the Authority at least 30 days prior written notice that paid parental leave 
will be requested. If this is not possible and the leave is not foreseeable, notice must be given 
as soon as practicable (within 1 to 2 business days of learning of the need for leave) except in 
extraordinary circumstances. Failure to provide such notice may be grounds for delay of leave. 
The employee must complete the necessary HR forms and provide all documentation as 
required by the HR department to substantiate the request.  
 
Returning from Paid Parental Leave: 
An employee returning from a paid parental leave absence will be required to work for a period 
of not less than 90 calendar days. Employees terminating their employment before the 
completion of the 90 days will be required to reimburse the Authority for insurance premiums 
paid for coverage during the paid parental leave. Employees who terminate their employment 
before the completion of the 90 requirement or who do not return following an approved paid 
parental leave will be responsible for repayment of any health insurance premiums paid by the 
Authority during the approved leave period as allowed by law.   
 
 
 
 



INVOICES - BOARD MEETING - February 29, 2024

Vendor Description Amount
Association of Metropolitan Water Agencies Membership Dues $19,000.00

Bond Scheneck & King, PLLC $354.00
$1,702.59
$2,056.59

CorrTech, Inc. Tank Inspection work at Mud and Station Road $19,457.50
Tank Inspection Services for the rehab of the Henry Clay Standpipe in Stony Brook $10,431.00
Tank Inspection Services for the rehab of the Henry Clay Standpipe in Stony Brook $33,592.50

$63,481.00

Dvirka & Bartilucci AT&T Upgrade $553.75

Heslin Rothenberg Farley & Mesti P.C. $100.00

Sobel Pevzner, LLC $2,826.50


	Agenda
	Minutes
	7792B Contract Extension
	7841 Contract Extension
	7855 Contract Extension
	7857B Contract Extension
	7866 A & C Contract Extension
	7929A Contract Extension
	7946 Contract Extension
	7948B Contract Extension
	7952 Contract Extension
	7953 A & B Contract Extension
	7954 Contract Extension
	7955 Contract Extension
	7960 Contract Extension
	7963 Contract Extension
	Contract 7998
	Contract 8016
	Contract 8017
	Contract 8021
	Contract 8022
	Ford F-150 Truck
	Mack MD6 CM Service Trucks
	Refuse Removal and Recycling Contract
	Cryogenic Tank Removal and Replacement
	Honeywell Controllers
	Thermo Fisher Scientific Ion Chromatograph Service Agreement
	RFP 1599
	RFP 1620
	RFP 1621
	Success Factors - EIPUSE Change Order #6
	RFP 1624
	AWWA ACE Conference
	Esri User Conference
	NYS AWWA Spring Meeting
	LabWare Customer Education Conference 2024
	American Backflow Prevention Association Conference
	AWWA Water Policy Conference
	Budget Amendment #6
	Budget Amendment #7
	Budget Amendment #8
	Budget Amendment #9
	Policy 115 - Paid Parental Leave - Revision
	Invoices



